Congress of the United States
MWashington, D 20515

March 5, 2018

Stefan C. Passantino
Deputy Counsel to the President

and Designated Agency Ethics Official
The White House
1600 Pennsylvania Avenue NW
Washington, D.C. 20500

Dear Mr. Passantino:

We are writing to seek information regarding Senior Advisor to the President Jared
Kushner’s divestment from his family’s company in the wake of reports that his family’s
business, Kushner Companies, received more than $500 million in loans from Apollo Global
Management and Citigroup after representatives of the companies met with Mr. Kushner at the
White House.!

This is not the first time we have written to you raising concerns and requesting
information on Mr. Kushner’s financial divestments, and we hope that you will provide us with a
detailed and timely response.

In January 2017, Mr. Kushner announced that he was stepping down as CEO of Kushner
Companies in order to work as a Senior Advisor to President Trump. He also indicated that he
would divest from his “substantial assets” in the company.’

However, in February 2017, reports surfaced that Mr. Kushner—in spite of his “vast
portfolio as an adviser to the president” and federal ethics laws that prohibit federal employees
from profiting from their government service—was “keeping parts of his family business,”
including “some real-estate holdings associated with Kushner Companies.”

Concerned by these reports, we sent you a letter requesting information on Mr. Kushner’s
compliance with federal conflict of interest laws. You failed to respond to this letter.*
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Weeks later, we wrote to you® about a highly troubling proposed transaction between
Anbang, a “shadowy Chinese financial behemoth™ with close ties to the Chinese government,®
and Kushner Companies. We again asked for information confirming that Mr. Kushner was
complying with federal laws barring employees from using their “public office for...private
gain,” or the gain of relatives and associates.” You again failed to respond.

In the meantime, Mr. Kushner appears to have maintained financial holdings in Kushner
Companies over the course of his first year serving in the White House.?

Last week, reports on Mr. Kushner’s interactions with Apollo and Citigroup once again
threw Mr. Kushner’s financial interests—and his refusal to fully divest—into the spotlight.
According to the New York Times, Apollo’s founder, Joshua Harris, began “paying regular visits
to the White House” in early 2017—including multiple meetings over the course of the year with
Mr. Kushner. In November 2017, Apollo lent $184 million to Kushner Companies to “refinance
the mortgage on a Chicago skyscraper.” The loan was “triple the size of the average property
loan made by Apollo’s real estate lending arm™ and was “one of the largest loans Kushner
Companies received last year.” Kushner Companies and a business partner also reportedly
received a $325 million loan from Citigroup for buildings in Brooklyn “shortly after Mr.
Kushner met in the White House with Citigroup’s chief executive, Michael L. Corbat.”
According to public filings, Mr. Kushner has a financial stake in these entities that received the
Apollo and Citigroup loans.’

In addition to concerns about conflicts of interest, Mr. Kushner’s refusal to divest his
holdings may also present national security concerns. According to a Washington Post report, at
least four foreign governments—including the United Arab Emirates, China, Israel, and
Mexico—have “privately discussed ways they can manipulate Jared Kushner, the president’s
son-in-law and senior adviser, by taking advantage of his complex business arrangements,
financial difficulties and lack of foreign policy experience.”!
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It is critical that the American people have faith that government officials are working
with the nation’s interests in mind—a faith that has been consistently challenged by reports of
Mr. Kushner’s failure to divest from his family’s real-estate empire while serving at the White

House.

To help us better understand the extent of Mr. Kushner’s financial interests, along with
the steps he may be taking to mitigate the influence of those interests on his policy work, we
request the following documents and information no later than March 16, 2018:

1.

Please provide a detailed description of Mr. Kushner’s financial stakes in Kushner
Companies, including a list of all entities that are affiliated with Kushner
Companies in which Mr. Kushner has a financial interest.

Please provide a detailed description of each issue discussed during Mr.
Kushner’s meetings with representatives from Apollo and Citigroup, including
any meeting notes, agendas, or memoranda related to those meetings.

Please provide all documents and communications related to the terms and
conditions of the Apollo and Citigroup loans to Kushner Companies.

What process did Kushner Companies use to obtain these loans? Was Mr.
Kushner involved in any way?

Did Mr. Kushner seek the advice of the White House Counsel’s Office or the
Office of Government Ethics prior to his meetings with officials from Apollo and
Citigroup? If so, please provide documents sufficient to show the dates on which
the advice was sought and the guidance provided.

Did Mr. Kushner seek the advice of the White House Counsel’s Office or Office
of Government Ethics prior to the acceptance by Kushner Companies of these two
loans? If so, please provide documents sufficient to show the dates on which the
advice was sought and the guidance provided.

Before the meetings, did Mr. Kushner notify anyone or seek permission from
anyone in the White House regarding his attendance at meetings with
representatives from Apollo and Citigroup? If so, please provide all documents
and communications regarding that notification or permission request.

Was Mr. Kushner required to publicly disclose any information about these loans?
Was he required to report the liabilities to the Office of Government Ethics or the
White House Counsel? Was he required to report these loans as part of his
security clearance process? Has he met any and all reporting requirements?

Has Mr, Kushner met with representatives of any other company or entity with
significant business or financial ties to Kushner Companies during his service at
the White House? If so, please provide a list of the dates, attendees, and contents
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of those meetings, including any applicable meeting notes, agendas, or
memoranda.

10. Has Mr. Kushner or any entity in which he has holdings received any loans,
entered any business transactions, or received any item of value from any of these
companies or entities? If so, please list them.

11.  Has Mr. Kushner agreed to recuse himself from particular policy discussions,
including any particular matters or matters involving specific parties, related to
his financial interests in Kushner Companies? If so, please provide a list of the
issues from which Mr. Kushner is recused. Has Mr. Kushner sought an opinion
from the Office of Government Ethics or the White House Counsel’s Office with
regard to the propriety of his investments in Kushner Companies, or the matters
from which he is required to recuse himself because of these interests? If so,
please provide a copy of any opinion provided to Mr. Kushner by the Office of
Government Ethics or White House Counsel.

12, Has your office made an effort to determine if Mr. Kushner is complying with
federal conflict of interest statutes and regulations with regard to his financial
interests? If so, please provide a copy of any determinations made by the White
House Counsel’s Office as to Mr. Kushner’s compliance.

If you have any questions about this request, please feel free to contact Susannah Savage
with Senator Warren’s staff at (202) 224-4543, Janet Kim with Ranking Member Cummings’
staff at (202) 225-5051, Roberto Berrios with Senator Carper’s staff at (202) 224-2441, or
Zachary Schram with Senator Peters’ staff at (202) 224-5543. Thank you for your prompt
attention to this request.

Sincerely,
Elizabgth Warren Elijalhb. Cummings G
United§States Senator Ranking Member

House Committee on Oversight and
Government Reform

e L. >~

Tom Carper Gary ers
United States Senator Unlt States Senator

cC: The Honorable Trey Gowdy
Chairman, House Committee on Oversight and Government Reform



